REPORT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION ON

Developing Procedures for Notifying Citizens of the Commonwealth of Their Eligibility for the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit

TO THE GOVERNOR AND THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF VIRGINIA



SENATE DOCUMENT NO. 30

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA RICHMOND 1993



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Department of Taxation

January 22, 1993

TO:

The Honorable Lawrence Douglas Wilder Governor of Virginia and The General Assembly of Virginia

The 1992 General Assembly, by Senate Joint Resolution No. 70, requested the Tax Commissioner to develop procedures for notifying citizens of the Commonwealth of their eligibility of the federal earned income tax credit.

Enclosed for your review and consideration is the report that has been prepared in response to this resolution.

Respectfully submitted,

Tax Commissioner

Virginia Department of Taxation

Committee To Develop Procedures For Notifying Citizens Of The Commonwealth Of Their Eligibility For The Federal Earned Income Tax Credit

William H. Forst, Tax Commissioner

Office of Tax Policy Staff

Janie E. Bowen Acting Assistant Tax Commissioner

J. Timothy Winks Assistant Director

Mark C. Haskins Senior Tax Policy Analyst

Lonnie T. Lewis, Jr. Tax Policy Analyst

Members of the Core Advisory Group

Judy Bartel Internal Revenue Service

Fay Lohr Department of Social Services

Margaret Friedenberg Department of Social Services

Nikki Nicholau Virginia Employment Commission

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary	1	
Introduction	2	
Federal Program	3	
Current Earned Income Credit	3	
Eligibility	3	
Past Efforts to Publicize the EIC	3	
Utilization of the EIC in Virginia	4	
Procedures to Notify Virginia Citizens of the Federal Earned Income Credit	5	
Short-Term Programs	5	
Broad-Based Programs with Wide Distribution	6	
Narrow-based Programs That Target Low-Income Families	7	
Long-Term Programs	8	
Footnotes	10	
Bibliography	11	
Appendices		
Senate Joint Resolution No. 70	Appendix	A
Department of Social Services, Work Plan for House Bill 30/Item 376	Appendix	В
Steering Committee to Develop Procedures For Notifying Citizens of the Commonwealth Of Their Eligibility for the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit	Appendix	С
Detail Listing of Activities to be Conducted by Steering Committee for the Current Year	Appendix	D
Center of Budget & Policy Priorities. Earned Income Tax Credit Participation by State for the Tax Years 1987 through 1991	Appendix	E
Samples of Promotional Material Used in the Current EIC Campaign	Appendix	F

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Senate Joint Resolution No. 70 of the 1992 Session of the General Assembly requested that the Department of Taxation (TAX) develop procedures for notifying citizens of the Commonwealth of their eligibility for the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EIC). A copy of the resolution may be found in Appendix A.

The EIC is intended to provide tax relief to certain low-income working individuals with children. The credit is refundable, thus qualifying individuals can receive a refund check even if they do not have a federal liability. Many low-income individuals who qualify for the federal credit fail to file the necessary form to receive the credit. This failure often occurs because of the misconception that an individual must have a tax liability to claim the EIC.

TAX, in conjunction with the Department of Social Services (DSS), formed a steering committee to assist with this project. Several steering committee meetings were held to solicit ideas for ways to communicate EIC information to low-income families. As a result, a plan has been developed and will be implemented for the upcoming filing season that emphasizes channeling resources and materials to those low-income families most likely to qualify for the EIC. In addition, emphasis is placed on conducting these activities at a minimal cost to the Commonwealth and to the organizations which volunteered through the steering committee to assist in notifying citizens of their eligibility for the EIC.

The steering committee found that an effective network of agencies and organizations already exists to channel information on the EIC to potential recipients. As such, a broad media advertising campaign is not recommended. Rather, it is felt that the most effective efforts will be those that are targeted toward specific groups of individuals who are likely to qualify for the EIC, such as WIC (Women, Infant & Children) supplemental feeding program recipients and Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) recipients.

Through special efforts, IRS was able to procure a sufficient number of materials on the EIC to reach several such target groups in 1993, and TAX will serve as a clearinghouse for these materials. However, the number was not sufficient for all requests by interested agencies and organizations to be honored. Nonetheless, many of these agencies and organizations, such as Virginia Power and the Virginia Council of Higher Education, have volunteered to conduct their own outreach programs.

These targeted programs will be augmented by low cost or no cost broad based outreach efforts that will reach individuals who

1

qualify for the EIC. The key to these efforts is a program to increase the media's awareness and coverage of the EIC during the upcoming tax filing season. This effort will include a news conference, news releases, and participation in television and radio programming (talk shows, call-in programs, etc.). In addition, information on the EIC will be included in the Virginia individual income tax packet, which reaches 2.2 million individuals, and EIC information will be provided to all state employees.

The steering committee plans to stay in existence at least through 1993 in order to evaluate the effectiveness of the various outreach efforts and recommend possible future programs. To the extent that IRS may be unable to provide sufficient EIC materials in future years, minimal funding (thought to be less than \$25,000) would be helpful for the printing of materials for future EIC outreach and maintenance efforts by interested agencies and organizations.

In addition, during 1993 the steering committee can explore with Virginia broadcasters the feasibility of creating a low cost, yet effective, public service advertising campaign.

INTRODUCTION

Senate Joint Resolution No. 70, patroned by Senator Janet Howell, requested that TAX develop procedures for notifying citizens of the Commonwealth of their eligibility for the EIC.

The General Assembly also took other steps to communicate information about the EIC. Senate Joint Resolution No. 71 requested that state agencies educate their employees concerning the EIC. In addition, Item 376 of the 1992 Appropriation Act required that DSS assist the Community Action Agencies (CAA's) in conducting a public awareness campaign to educate low-income Virginians about the EIC. A work plan for this effort may be found in Appendix B.

Since both TAX and DSS have a similar purpose of communicating the EIC to Virginia citizens, these agencies collaborated to form a steering committee. This committee included representatives from state, federal and private organizations. A detailed list of organizations comprising the steering committee may be found in Appendix C. The steering committee discussed ways it could use its resources in communicating the EIC to Virginia citizens. The procedures developed by the committee are shown in this report.

FEDERAL PROGRAM

CURRENT EARNED INCOME CREDIT

The EIC was established to provide tax relief for low-income working families by offsetting the effects of the social security payroll tax on low-income working families with children. The EIC that is currently available to low-income families was contained in the Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1990 and began in taxable year 1991. More than 13.7 million families received \$11.3 billion in EIC when they filed their 1991 federal income tax returns.¹ In addition, for 1992, the EIC increases the maximum credit to \$2,211 for taxpayers with income below \$22,370.

The federal credit is income sensitive since after a certain income level, it declines as income increases. Its benefits are based directly on earned income. The EIC offers cash aid to working parents who have relatively low incomes and who care for dependent children. For many eligible families, the EIC results in lower tax payments. Because the Federal program is refundable, those who owe no income taxes at year's end or whose tax liability is smaller than the credit will receive all or part of the EIC as a direct payment from the U.S. Treasury.

ELIGIBILITY

The 1990 law changes eased some of the eligibility rules for the credit. The EIC is now available to essentially any taxpayer which earned less than \$22,370 and has at least one child in the home. The link between the EIC and Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) benefits has also been severed. The EIC is no longer considered in determining eligibility and benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid and social security. Beginning in 1991, there is no longer a link with the dependent exemption rules, thus allowing families with foster children for the full taxable year to claim the credit.

PAST EFFORTS TO PUBLICIZE THE EIC

Because of major changes in the EIC for 1991, the Internal Revenue Service undertook a massive initiative to inform taxpayers about the availability of the EIC. It initiated mass advertising by television, radio and newspaper. Additionally, major companies and government agencies were encouraged to include EIC information with employee bulletins, newsletters and payroll checks. They also targeted markets through displaying billboards, posters, brochures and flyers in places were low-income people assemble or frequent.

For 1992, IRS has discontinued its initiative to communicate the

EIC to low-income families; therefore, mass media activities have been reduced. Because there are no significant law changes in the EIC from last year, the IRS has initiated a maintenance program for the EIC. Funding and resources to promote the EIC have been reduced to the level of providing taxpayer assistance services and furnishing literature on request.

Virginia agencies have sought to keep employees abreast of their eligibility for the EIC through notifications distributed with payroll checks. In addition, many state employees participate in the Voluntary Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Program, a program sponsored by the Internal Revenue Service. This program provides federal income tax assistance to low-income individuals.

UTILIZATION OF THE EIC IN VIRGINIA

Many low-income citizens who meet the filing threshold do not file federal tax returns. Therefore, it is difficult to estimate the number of Virginia citizens eligible to claim the EIC. However, the usage of the EIC has increased since 1987. Much of this increase is attributable to the outreach efforts by the IRS, state agencies and private organizations. In addition, there were major changes in the EIC for 1991. As a result of these changes, the IRS instituted a major initiative to inform taxpayers of the availability of the EIC. The tables below show the approximate utilization of the EIC in Virginia for the years 1987 through 1991.

EIC RECIPIENCY FOR VIRGINIA ²						
<u>Year</u>	Families Getting	Increase in Families	Percent of Increase			
1987	188,517					
1988 .	240,019	51,502	27.3%			
1989	253,093	13,074	5.4			
1990	275,937	22,844	9.0			
1991	304,403	28,466	10.3			
Total	1,261,969	115,886	61.5%			

EIC DOLLARS RECEIVED FOR VIRGINIA²

<u>Year</u>	Dollars in Credit	Increase in Dollars	Percentage of Increase
1987	\$ 87,382,000		
1988	127,356,000	\$ 39,974,000	52.7%
1989	141,158,000	13,802,000	10.8
1990	163,394,000	22,236,000	15.8
1991	253,768,000	90,374,000	55.3
Total	\$773,058,000	\$ 166,386,000	190.4%

AVERAGE EIC PER VIRGINIA RECIPIENT

<u>Year</u>	Amount	Increase		
1987	\$ 464.00			
1988	531.00	\$ 66.00		
1989	558.00	28.00		
1990	592.00	34.00		
1991	834.00	241.00		
1987-1991	\$ 613.00			

The number of Virginians claiming the EIC increased 10.3% or 28,466 from 1990 to 1991. This increase is partially attributable to the outreach activities of the IRS, state agencies and private concerns. In addition, since the eligibility requirements for claiming the EIC were relaxed in 1991, the credit became available to more families.

Although the number of participants increased by 10.3%, for the same time period, the dollar value of the credit increased 55.3% (over \$90 million). Furthermore, the average credit showed a major increase from \$592 to \$834 for each participant. The increase in the dollar value of the credit is partially attributable to the increase in the basic credit, and the addition of two new credits for health care premiums and children born in 1991.

PROCEDURES TO NOTIFY VIRGINIA CITIZENS OF THE FEDERAL EARNED INCOME CREDIT

SHORT-TERM PROGRAMS

To implement an information campaign for the 1992 filing season, the steering committee, which is made up of an extensive network of organizations which have contact with low-income families, developed two categories of programs:

- Broad-based programs that are intended to provide general information about the EIC to all Virginians.
- Narrow-based programs that target information about the EIC to those citizens most likely to benefit from the credit.

These programs will effectively promote the EIC to Virginia citizens while incurring a minimal expense to the Commonwealth and the steering committee organizations. A complete list of short-term procedures to be implemented by the steering committee member organizations may be found in Appendix D.

Broad-Based Programs with Wide Distribution

A broad media advertising campaign is not recommended at this time, but can be explored for the future. Based upon TAX's experience with the Virginia Tax Amnesty Program in 1990, a media advertising campaign may be extremely costly, even after broadcasters donate air time. Costs would be incurred in the design and production of the public service announcements themselves. In addition, broadcasters likely could provide only limited amounts of free air time in peak viewer periods where the advertisements might be most effective in reaching the target audience.

The steering committee feels that the most effective efforts are those that target specific groups of individuals which are likely to qualify for the EIC. These targeted programs, which are discussed further in the next section, will be augmented by low cost or no cost broad-based outreach efforts, which will center around increasing the awareness and coverage of the EIC by the print and broadcast media.

This broad-based media effort will include:

- a kick-off news conference,
- news releases to all Virginia media outlets,
- placing EIC advertisement in the Rural Living magazine, and
- participation in call-in programs and talk shows on radio and television by personnel from Tax, IRS, DSS, and other agencies and organizations.

Broad-based nonmedia efforts will include:

a message printed on the cover of the Virginia individual

income tax forms and instructions, which reaches approximately 2.2 million persons,

- increased participation by CAA's in the IRS Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program, and specialized training by IRS on the EIC for volunteer tax preparers,
- an EIC message printed on approximately 125,000 state payroll check issued by the Department of Accounts,
- furnishing flyers to each state agency on EIC eligibility requirements,
- placing EIC information in customer and employee newsletters of public utility companies such as Virginia Power,
- placing EIC information in the newsletter of the Virginia Council of Churches, which is issued to approximately 9,000 pastors and religious workers, and
- placing information stuffers on buses of the Greater Richmond Transit Company.

Narrow-Based Programs That Target Low-Income Families

The steering committee found that an excellent network of agencies and organizations already exists for the channelling of the EIC information to potential recipients. This network will be utilized in 1993 to target information to those individuals who are most likely to qualify for the EIC.

Through special efforts, IRS will be able to furnish Virginia 250,000 copies of information stuffers on the EIC plus a limited number of brochures and posters. TAX will serve as a clearinghouse for these materials. The demand exists from agencies and organizations for additional copies of these federal publications; however, many agencies, organizations and businesses have committed to producing and distributing their own materials in an effort to reach out to potential EIC recipients among their clients, customers, students, etc.

Efforts in 1993 will include:

- an EIC message will be printed on Aid for Families with Dependent Children checks issued by the Virginia Department of Social Services,
- an insert to be included with approximately 80,000 checks issued under the Women, Infants & Children (WIC) supplemental feeding program by the Virginia Department of Health,

- posters and flyers to be placed in the financial aid offices of colleges and universities,
- furnishing EIC material to literacy organizations throughout the Commonwealth by way of Virginia Literacy Foundation, and
- distributing information by the Department of Housing and Urban Development to public housing authorities in the Commonwealth for posting in offices where persons go to make rental payments.

These <u>short-term</u> procedures should significantly increase the awareness of the EIC at an extremely minimal cost. The effectiveness of these options will be evaluated after 1993 in order to decide whether additional resources should be allocated to EIC education on a <u>long-term</u> basis.

LONG-TERM PROGRAMS

The steering committee plans to remain in existence at least through 1993 to evaluate the effectiveness of these programs and recommend potential future programs. A key to this evaluation will be feedback received from customers of the VITA programs run by CAA's to determine where individuals learned of the EIC.

At this point, it is anticipated that additional targeted outreach efforts will be helpful in future years. In addition, some maintenance of effort will likely be required for AFDC, WIC and other program recipients who receive information on the EIC in 1993. IRS may not be able to provide sufficient quantities of materials for these programs in future years, thus, modest state funding might be required. It is anticipated that funding of \$25,000 annually would be sufficient to cover the needs of agencies, organizations, and businesses desiring to develop outreach programs.

Such funding would also enable the development of foreign language EIC materials. Similarly, the funding may be utilized to develop "bus cards" for posting in buses, trains etc. At least one mass transit company has agreed to post the cards without an advertising fee if printing and related fees are borne by the state or a private organization.

Potential target groups for programs may include:

- Food stamp recipients,
- New manufacturing service or sales businesses locating their operations in Virginia,
- Homeless shelters, food banks, soup kitchens and similar

organizations.

In addition, the steering committee can explore with Virginia's broadcasters in 1993 the feasibility of a low cost public service advertising campaign. The committee's findings can be reported to the Governor, the House Appropriations and Finance Committees, and the Senate Finance Committee prior to the 1994 Session of the General Assembly.

FOOTNOTES

¹ Center of Budget and Policy Priorities, <u>Earned Income Tax Credit</u> <u>Participation by State for the Tax Years 1987 through 1991</u> (Washington, D.C.).

² Ibid.

.

.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Center of Budget & Policy Priorities. <u>Earned Income Tax Credit</u> <u>Participation by State for the Tax Years 1987 through 1991</u>. Washington, D.C.
- Internal Revenue Service. <u>Targeting Individuals Eligible for the</u> <u>Earned Income Credit: A Review of Secondary Data and</u> <u>Suggestions for Communication Planning.</u> Washington, D.C., 1991.
- Virginia Department of Taxation, Secretary of Health and Human Resources, Secretary of Economic Development, Secretary of Finance. <u>Virginia Earned Income Tax Credit Study</u>. Richmond, Virginia. 1991.

APPENDICES

Senate Joint Resolution No. 70	Appendix A
Department of Social Services, Work Plan for House Bill 30/Item 376	Appendix B
Steering Committee To Develop Procedures For Notifying Citizens Of The Commonwealth Of Their Eligibility for the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit	Appendix C
Detail Listing of Activities to be Conducted by Steering Committee for the Current Year	Appendix D
Center of Budget & Policy Priorities. Earned Income Tax Credit Participation by State for the Tax Years 1987 through 1991.	Appendix E
Samples of Promotional Material Used in the Current EIC Campaign	Appendix F

Appendix A

1992 SESSION

LD4312687

1			SENATE JOIN								
2		AMENDMENT IN THE NATURE OF A SUBSTITUTE									
3		(Proposed by the House Committee on Rules									
- 4		on February 27, 1992)									
5		(Patron Prior to Substitute-Senator Howell)									
6	Requesting	sting the Department of Taxation to develop procedures for notifying citizens of the									
7		ommonwealth of their eligibility for the federal earned income credit.									
8		EREAS, the Earned Income Credit (EIC) is a federal tax credit for working families									
9		ve earned an adjusted gross income of less than \$21,250 in 1991 and who have at									
10			iving at home; and								
11			he basic EIC for 1991 for	r fam	nilies w	ith one child is \$1	192 and	for families			
12			one child is \$1,235; and					ior rannines			
12			amilies that pay at least	et ne	art of	the premiums for	a healt	h insurance			
			des health care coverage								
14	• •	Inclu		101	a cuin	may receive au e	Aud Lie	an or up to			
15		746	many working families		011	ante al Vincinia		umbaa aad			
16		•	• •		-	and of virginia-	-iurai,	urban, and			
17			igible for this tax credit;								
18		las, n	nany state employees, fu	ill an	na par	ume, are eligible	ior the	tax credit;			
19											
20			n 1989 Virginia families r								
21			is estimated that Virgin	18 181	milles	are eligible for at l	east \$15	0 million in			
22			-				_				
23		-	nany eligible Virginia fan	nilies	are u	naware of the EIC	because	they do not			
24			ne tax forms; and								
25			nany Virginia families wi		-	-					
26			al regulation changes r	equir	ring th	em to complete S	chedule	EIC; now,			
27	therefore, b										
28			y the Senate, the House		-	—		-			
29		•	ested to develop procedu			fying citizens of th	e Comm	onwealth of			
30	•	•	or the federal earned inc								
31		-	ent shall report its p	-			-				
32			e 1993 Session of the Ge								
33			the procedures of the	Div	rision	of Legislative Auto	mated	Systems for			
34	processing l	legisla	tive documents.								
35											
36											
37											
38											
39											
40											
41											
42											
43	1				_			1			
44			Officia	l Use	e By C						
45						Agreed to E	•				
46			Agreed to By The Senat	e		The House of Del					
47			without amendment			without amendme					
			with amendment			with amendment					
48		ſ	substitute			substitute					
49			substitute w/amdt			substitute w/amd	t 🗆				
54					N = 4 =						
51		Date:		-	Date:						
52				-							
53			Clerk of the Senate		Clerk	of the House of De	legates				
54		_	فكراه فيستجرب ويتري والمتعالمات والمتعا					I			

Appendix B

EARNED INCOME TAX CREDIT Public Awareness Workplan HOUSE BILL 30/Item 370

I. <u>Request</u>:

House Bill 30/376 requires that the Community Action Agencies conduct a public awareness campaign to educate low-income Virginians about the Federal Earned Income Credit. The Department of Social Services shall submit a plan for this effort to the Governor and the Chairmen of House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees by September 1, 1992.

The Earned Income Credit (EIC) is a tax credit for families that work full-time, part-time or part of the year and have children. To qualify in 1992 families must have income of less than \$22,370 and have at least one child living with them. The maximum credit for families with one child is \$1,324 in 1992. Families with two or more children may receive up to \$1,380. Families qualifying for all credits can get total EIC payments of \$2,000. The EIC is an incentive that puts money back in the pockets of low-income citizens who earned it.

11. <u>Significance</u>:

The majority of the effort will be required by the CAA's to develop an outreach campaign including news articles, public service announcements on the television where available and radio, and information sharing at places where the low-income congregate.

For low-income families who have not filed previously for the EIC, it could produce unexpected income to purchase basic necessities.

III. Issues To Be Addressed:

The department's Office of Community Services (OCS) will do a survey of the Community Action Agencies (CAAs) to ascertain how many are already assisting their clients to file for the EIC. CAAs not familiar with the EIC will receive training and assistance to develop a public awareness campaign.

IV. <u>Persons to be involved</u>:

The staff of OCS and the CAAs will be working together to develop the workplan. The lead person at OCS is Fay Lohr (662-9272) and the lead for the CAAs is Winfred Brown, Executive Director of the Virginia Association of Community Action Agencies(VACAA). Contact will be made with IRS offices to find out the percentage of participation in the EIC in Virginia. The CAAs will contact local government and other agencies in their service areas to ensure familiarity with the EIC.

v. <u>Desired Outcome</u>:

The most important goal of the public awareness campaign is to inform low income families of eligibility for EIC and locations for obtaining assistance filling out the EIC tax forms.

The workplan has been developed by OCS and the CAAs that clearly defines the steps to be taken to ensure a successful awareness campaign. It includes timelines for completion of each phase of the campaign and the person who is responsible for the task. Included in this process is training on conducting a successful campaign. CAA Executive Directors familiar with the EIC will serve as mentors for other directors who are unaware of the EIC rules.

vi. <u>Approach</u>:

Office of Community Services provided information packets on the EIC to every CAA at the April VACAA meeting to ensure knowledge of the program.

On June 8th OCS met with the VACAA membership to design the awareness campaign strategy, assign tasks and set-up a time-line for completion. The workplan is attached.

Monthly updates on the progress of the implementation plan have been sent to OCS by the executive director of VACAA. Fay Lohr and Winfred Brown will confer at regular intervals about the progress of the plan and any problems which may arise.

Office of Community Services will seek permission to prepare mailers regarding the EIC to go in all VDSS correspondence mailed in Virginia during the period of the public awareness campaign as an additional method of spreading the word. This is especially important since only two-thirds of Virginia is served by Community Action Agencies Below is a copy of the workplan. An evaluation will be conducted by OCS and CAAs after the campaign to discern what activities were successful in spreading the word and what items should be revised.

EIC WORKPLAN

DATES OBJECTIVE/TASKS PERSONS

RESPONSIBLE

3/18/91 EARNED INCOME CREDIT (EIC) Information were OCS Staff ordered to be distributed to the Community Action Agencies (CAAs)
4/02/92 EIC Information Packets were distributed to OCS Staff the CAAs at the April CAA Meeting in

Charlottesville.

- 5/21/92 Meeting held with OCS Director and OCS/VACAA Winfred Brown, Executive Director of the Virginia Association of Community Action Agencies [VACAA] to discuss the design of the EIC Public Awareness Campaign.
- 6/11/92 The VACAA Membership appointed an EIC Task VACAA Force to design the EIC Public Awareness Campaign. This committee will also study the feasibility of having a State EIC Program. A brief meeting was held to do the initial overview of the workplan.
- 6/25/92 The Director of OCS and the Executive Director OCS/VACAA of VACAA met to discuss the design of the workplan and the time-table.
- 6/30/92 Draft workplan was circulated to the EIC Task OCS Force for review and correction.
- 9/01/92 Submit workplan to the Secretary's office, OCS General Assembly, and the Governer.
- 12/01/92 Order additional materials necessary for the CAAs Public Awareness Campaign.
- 12/15/92 Photocopy EIC flyers to be ready for CAAs distribution.
- 1/01/93 EIC posters are put up in well travelled CAAs areas where low-income people congregate.
- 1/05/93 Distribute EIC flyers to libraries, banks, CAAs community centers, churches, municipal offices, senior centers, departments of social services, CAAs, businesses, and other congregate sites.
- 1/15/93 Train for the EIC Public Awareness OCS Campaign at the January VACAA Heating in Richmond.

1/19/93	Reproduce and distribute the EIC envelope inserts. They will be placed in employee paychecks, newsletters, local phone and utility bills and social service mail-outs. The envelope insert will include local number[s] that families can call to get assistance with filing the EIC IRS form to receive the credit.	СААв
1/19/93	Local CAA staff will be trained to provide information and to prepare EIC forms.	слль
3/1/93	Design evaluation process.	OCS/CAAs
4/15/93	Local CAA staff will be available to refer families to receive help with EIC forms or to fill out the forms themselves. Programs will be held at congregate sites such as churches, clubs and other meeting places to disseminate information about the EIC	Суув
4/25/93	An evaluation of the public awareness campaign will take place at the April VACAA meeting to discuss how the campaign went, suggestions forimprovement and things that were done that were successful.	ocs/vacaa

.

.

<u>Appendix C</u>

Steering Committee to Develop Procedures for Notifying Citizens of the Commonwealth of Their Eligibility for the Federal Earned Income Tax Credit

(Alphabetized by Company Name)

Mr. Dan Carson Public Affairs Appalachian Power Company P. O. Box 2021 Roanoke, VA 24022-2121

Paul T Miller Area Manager/Southside VA C & P Telephone 600 W. Main Street Richmond, VA 23219

Henry McLaughlin, Director Central Virginia Legal Aide Society, Inc. 101 West Broad Street, Suite 101 P. O. Box 12206 Richmond, VA 23241

Anne Pratt Council of Higher Education 101 North 14th Street 9th Floor Richmond, VA 23219

Jay Mason Manager of Corporate Relations Delmarva Power P. O. Box 1739 Salisbury, Maryland 21802-1739

Mary Ann Wilson, Manager Department of Housing and Urban Development Richmond Office P. O. Box 10170 400 North Eighth Street Richmond, VA 23240-0170

Steering Committee

Tracie Beard Director of Marketing Greater Richmond Transit Company P. O. Box 27323 Richmond, VA 23261-7323

Ellen Crosby Fiscal Director Governor's Employment and Training Department 4615 West Broad Street, Third Floor Richmond, VA 23230

Bobby N. Vassar Deputy Secretary Health and Human Resources 202 North Ninth Street Richmond, VA 23219

Judy Bartel Public Affairs Officer Internal Revenue Service 400 North Eight Street Richmond, VA 23240

Harold E. Armsey General Manager Old Dominion Power Company P. O. Box 658 Norton, VA 24273

June Lafollette Division Customer Accounting Supervisor Potomac Edison Company P. O. Box 3200 Winchester, Va 22601

John Bruce, Managing Editor Rural Living 4201 Dominion Boulevard, Suite 101 Glen Allen, VA 23060

Virginia H. Kirk Executive Director United Way of Virginia P. O. Box 12209 Richmond, Virgiia 23241

Steering Committee

Robert Goldsmith President Virginia Association of Community Action Agencies, Inc. 988 West Main Street Abingdon, VA 24210

Joy Graham Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs Virginia Community College System 101 N. 14th Street Richmond, VA 23219

Winfred Brown Executive Director Virginia Council Against Proverty 520 W. Franklin Street, Suite 22 Richmond, Virginia 23220

The Reverend James McDonald General Minister Virginia Council of Churches 1214 West Graham Road, Suite 3 Richmond, VA 23220

Evelyn L. Steele, Manager Payroll Processing and Accounting Virginia Department of Accounts Monroe Building 101 North 14th Street, Second Floor Richmond, VA 23219

Margaret Roberts Public Affairs Virginia Department of Education Monroe Building 101 North 14th Street Richmond, VA. 23219

Paul Matthias, Director WIC Program Virginia Department of Health P. O. Box 2448 Richmond, Virginia 23218

Steering Committee

Ms. Susan Cooke Acting Public Relations Manager Virginia Department of Personnel & Training 101 North 14th Street Mezzanine Floor Richmond, Virginia 23219

Fay Lohr, Director Office of Community Services Department of Social Services 101 North Eight Street Richmond, VA 23219

Nikki Nicholau, Director Job Service Division Virginia Employment Commission P. O. Box 1358 Richmond, VA 23211

Mark Emblidge Executive Director Virginia Literacy Foundation 700 East Main Street Richmond, VA 23219

David Rubinstein, Director Virginia Poverty Law Center 9 West Main Street Richmond, VA 23220

Eva Tieg Vice President Public Affairs Virginia Power P.O. Box 26666 Richmond, VA 23261

Appendix D

Detail Listing of Activities to be Conducted by Steering Committee for the Current Year

The emphasis of the steering committee is to utilize inexpensive methods of communicating the EIC to Virginia citizens. Every effort is made to channel resources to organizations which target low-income families eligible for the credit. However, activities are also being used to widely communicate the EIC information to Virginians citizens.

Virginia Department of Taxation (TAX)

TAX mails over 2 million individual income tax packets to Virginia taxpayers each year. The Tax Commissioner's message on the front of the packets includes issues of importance to the taxpayers. In the 1992 packet, the Tax Commissioner includes in his message a description of the EIC. The message gives the income limitation, the amount of credit available for a family with one child and an Internal Revenue Service phone number which may be used to request additional information.

TAX will organize the distribution EIC materials to the organizations on the steering committee mentioned in this report. In addition, it will provide guidance and recommendations to these organization on better methods of communicating the EIC to their clients, customers or employees.

The main headquarters of TAX is located in Richmond. In addition, there are eight district offices located throughout Virginia. As part of the taxpayer services function, TAX will display stuffers, brochures and posters in the lobby areas of main office and its district offices.

To communicate EIC information to its employees, TAX is including EIC information with payroll checks and placing posters on employee bulletin boards.

When available, TAX will utilize free public service announcements (PSA) on television and radio. In addition, press releases will be issued to newspaper and other print media to announce the availability of the EIC.

Virginia Department of Social Services (DSS)

Under the authority of House Bill 30/Item 376 of the 1992 General Assembly, the DSS surveyed the CAA's to determine how many are already assisting their clients in filing for the EIC. CAA's not familiar with the EIC will receive training and assistance in

developing a public awareness campaign. In addition, the IRS will assist in providing training to the agency employees on the EIC through the VITA Program so that the CAA's can provide face-to-face assistance to their clients.

Many Virginia single parents receive support checks through the DSS Support Enforcement activities because they and the children have been abandoned by the spouse. Also AFDC checks are issued to provide assistance to low-income single parents experiencing financial difficulties. EIC information will be made available for persons receiving assistance from these programs. In addition, packets on the EIC will be ordered from the Center of Budget and Policy Priorities and distributed to the 124 local offices of DSS in Virginia. This information will be made available to the clients of those offices.

Child day care centers licensed in Virginia must be on record with DSS. Information on the EIC will be made available to these centers. In addition, EIC information will be placed in a newsletter which is sent to the day care homes in Virginia.

Many citizens receive medicare cards at the first of the year. EIC information will provided to the recipients of these cards.

Internal Revenue Service (IRS)

The IRS will be responsible for three areas. First it will provide stuffers, brochures, publications, and posters on the EIC. Secondly, it will be responsible for shipping these EIC materials to TAX for distribution to the organizations. Lastly, it will use the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) sites throughout Virginia to provide EIC training for the staff of CAA offices in the respective localities. These offices will provide EIC assistance to their clients who receive social services.

Virginia Department of Accounts (DOA)

DOA is responsible for generating over 125,000 payroll checks for Commonwealth employees. It will print a short message on each paycheck stub concerning the EIC. In addition, it will send a letter to each state agency concerning notifying its employees of the availability of the EIC. This letter will include flyers which may be copied for distribution to employees or placed on an employee bulletin board.

Virginia Department of Health (DOH)

DOH is responsible for distributing over 80,000 checks a month through the Women Infants & Children Supplement Feeding Programs (WIC) which could be targeted for this campaign. The WIC program provides assistance to low-income parents to help in purchasing milk, eggs and similar items for their children. DOH will distribute EIC stuffers along with the checks to these recipients.

Virginia Employment Commission (VEC)

The VEC has satellite offices around in the state. People come to their offices to complete employment applications for organizations which list with their agency. The VEC will place posters, brochures and flyers in the lobbies of their facilities for their applicants's information.

Public Utilities and Cooperatives

The public utility companies and cooperatives on the steering committee included Virginia Power, C & P Telephone, Appalachian Power Company, Potomac Edison Company, Delmarva Power, Old Dominion Electric Cooperative, and Rural Living, a magazine which has a wide audience in the rural parts of Virginia and does advertising for the public utility cooperatives. The activities which they will conduct are included as follows:

- Print information in customer newsletter to be sent with billing statements.
- Distribute EIC information with employee paychecks and communicate information in employee newsletter.
- Place advertising in publications such as Rural Living, a magazine with wide distribution in the rural areas of Virginia.
- Place posters, brochures and flyers in places where employees assemble.
- Make flyers available where there is frequent customer traffic such as customer lobbies and drive-in windows.
- Make information available to persons participating in the fuel assistance program.

Education

The steering committee also consisted of organizations from the education community. These organizations included Virginia Department of Education, Council of Higher Education, Virginia Community College System, and the Virginia Department of Education. Activities which they will perform include the following:

- Distribute information to schools for parents.
- Distribute information to colleges for students.
- Distribute information through school and employee newsletter.

Place posters in places where employees and students assemble.

Housing

The steering committee also consisted of the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), which administers public housing for low- income families. They will be performing the following:

- Distribute information to public housing authorities around the state for posting in offices where persons go to make rental payments.
- Furnish information to Federal Housing Authority (FHA) insured projects for distribution to participants
- Place posters and flyers in areas where employees and clients assemble.

Nonprofit and Other Organizations

Other agencies in the steering committee which expressed interest in communicating information on the EIC included Virginia Council of Churches, Central Virginia Legal Aide Society, Inc., Virginia Literacy Foundation, Virginia Poverty Law Center, and Greater Richmond Transit Company. Activities which they will do are as follows:

- Furnish information through the distribution of 9,000 newsletters to the pastors of churches for communication to the church congregations.
- Furnish information to affiliates for communication to participates in literacy programs.
- Place stuffers in buses to advertise the EIC.
- Distribute information to employees with payroll checks and employee newsletters.
- Place posters in areas where employees and clients assemble.

					% John J	change Irs recei	: ved
	Tax Year 1987	1988	1989	1990	1987-88		
Alabama	\$109.238,000	\$156,275,000	\$175,570,000	\$199,942,000	43.1%	12.3%	13.9%
Alaska	4.675.000	7,204,000	7,721,000	8,586,000	54.1%	7.2%	11.2%
Anzona	59.376.000	96.526.000	114,078,000	130,285,000	62.6%	18.2%	11.27
Arkansee	59,953,000	87.371.000	97,414,000	107,267,000	45.7%	10.270	19.2%
California	477,197,000	754,415,000	905,554,000	1,090,602,000	58.1%	20.0%	20.4%
Colorado	44,657,000	70,746,000	77,446,000	85,418,000	58.4%	9.5%	10.39
Connecticut	22,231,000	33,810,000	36,747,000	40.889,000	52.1%	8.7%	10.37
Delaware	9,683,000	14,291,000	15.339.000	17,297,000	47.6%	7.3%	12.8%
D.C.	14.057.000	20,420,000	21.827.000	25,383,000	45.3%	6.9%	
Florida	227,071,000	349,276,000	404,053,000	465,636,000	53.8%	15.7%	16.39
Georgia	141,351,000	210,378,000	240,054,000	274.952,000	48.8%		15.29
Hawaii	11,876,000	18,349,000	18,301,000			14.1%	14.59
idaho		25,450,000	27,560,000	18,805,000	54.5%	-0.3%	2.89
	16,939,000			30,776,000	50.2%	8.3%	11.79
Illinois	153,256,000	231,069,000	262,665.000	298,717,000	50.8%	13.7%	13.79
Indiana	80,745,000	118,971,000	130,371,000	145,582,000	47.3%	9.6%	11.79
lowa	31,756,000	47,544,000	51,701,000	57,106,000	49.7%	8.7%	10.59
Kansas	30,934,000	47,414,000	51,784,000	56,804,000	53.3%	9.2%	9.79
Kennucky	74,566,000	106,466,000	114,347,000	123,857,000	42.8%	7,4%	8.39
Louisiane	122,072,000	168,052,000	186,837,000	207,418,000	37.7%	11.2%	11.09
Maine	16,876,000	24,820,000	26,529,000	29,118,000	47.1%	6.9%	9.89
Maryland	59,534,000	91, 590,000	100,430,000	115,300,000	53.8%	9.7%	14.89
Massachusetts	44,639,000	68,151,000	77,302,000	91,220,000	52.7%	13.4%	18.09
Michigan	95,840,000	147,176,000	163,306,000	184,316,000	53.6%	11.0%	12.99
Vinnesota	40.024.000	60,193,000	65,011,000	71,507,000	50.4%	8.0%	10.09
Mississippi	96,353,000	131,110,000	147,891,000	167,576,000	36.1%	12.8%	13.39
lissouri	81,845,000	122,113,000	134,914,000	150,789,000	49.2%	10.5%	11.89
Iontana	14,495,000	20,856,000	22,158,000	24,024,000	43.9%	6.2%	8,49
Vebrasica	21,263,000	32.034.000	34,740,000	37,827,000	50.7%	8.4%	8.94
vevada	15,606,000	25,840,000	30,167,000	36,443,000	65.6%	16.7%	20.89
	9.344.000	14,430,000	16,469,000	18,700,000	54.4%	14.1%	13.54
New Hampshire	89,144,000	141,900,000	147,271,000	173,854,000	59.2%	3.8%	18.19
iew Jersey	37,922,000	56_536,000			49.1%	13.0%	11.89
ew Maxico	246.399.000		63,871,000 408,300,000	71,402,000			12.7
ew York		371,120,000	238.623.000	460,277,000	50.6%	10.0%	
orth Carolina	139,237,000	214,000,000		273,935,000	53.8%	11.5%	14.89
orth Dakota	9,242,000	13,922,000	14,211,000	14,530,000	50.6%	2.1%	2.2
hio	135,671,000	203.503.000	224,177,000	250,293,000	50.0%	10.2%	11.6
kiahoma	62,755,000	91,095,000	100,317,000	110,755,000	45.2%	10.1%	10.4
regon	40,015,000	59,953,000	64,260,000	71,963,000	49.8%	7.2%	12.0
ennsylvania	142,489,000	210,361,000	227,340,000	251,284,000	47.6%	8.1%	10.5
hode Island	10,451,000	15,630,000	18,019,000	20,727,000	49.6%	15.3%	
outh Carolina	\$1,784,000	123,444,000	139,108,000	159,796,000	50.9%	12.7%	
outh Dakota	11,771,000	16,983,000	17.840,000	19,238,000	44.3%	5.0%	7.8
20702200	111,225,000	160.502.000	176,003,000	198,495,000	44.3%	9.7%	12.8
1744	373,886,000	576,551,000	655.009.000	748,399,000	54.2%	13.6%	14.3
cah	20,753,000	32.028.000	35,223,000	39.584.000	54.3%		
ermoet	6,637,000	9,872,000	10.616.000	11,844,000	48.7%		
	83.382.000	127,356,000	141,158,000	163,394,000	52.7%		
irginie							
ashington	54,063,000	83,199,000	91,635,000	102,276,000	53.9%		
est Virginia	32,137,000	46,610,000	49,810,000	53,895,000	45.0%		
isconsin	48,549,000	72,625,000	81,364,000	91,0 63,000	49.6%		
tu and lan	< AA A AAA	10 101 000	10 992 000	11 012 000	1 17 66		101

EIC Dollars Received by State, Tax Years 1987-90

W ٩, 11,816,000 5.2% 10.2% Wyoming 6,894,000 10,191,000 10,725,000 47.8% 13.9% \$3,932,549,000 \$5,940,882,000 \$6,695,917,000 \$7,627,513,000 12.7% U.S. Total 51.1% 10.0% 11.8% Median 50.2%

						:hange: er of fa	milles
-	Tas Year 1947	/ 988	/589	1990	7957-55 7		757-90
Alabema	229,278	276.555	295.661	319,441	20.6%	6.9%	8.0%
Alaska	12,355	15,635	15,757	16,908	26.5%	0.8%	8.070 7.3%
Arizona	134,021	179,792	200,235	216,122	34.2%	11,4%	7.9%
Arkansee	129,919	158,641	168,592	175,524	22.1%	6.3%	4.1%
California	1,047,495	1,375,678	1,538,104	1,755,297	31.3%	11.8%	14.1%
Colorado	102,664	135,613	141,033	147,929	32.1%	4.0%	4.9%
Connecticut	54,082	70,144	72,663	77,810	29.7%	3.6%	7.1%
Delaware	21,798	26,856	27,786	29,624	23.2%	3.5%	6.6%
D.C.	32,180 495,345	40,104 636,376	40,659 697,369	44,782	24.6% 28.5%	1.4%	10.1%
Florida Georgia	306,941	382,423	415,852	762,327 451,03 8	24.6%	9.6 % 8.7%	9.3% 8.5%
Hawait	29,665	38,014	36,535	36,291	28.1%	-3.9%	-0,7%5
Idaho	39,054	48,734	49,972	52,881	24.8%	2.5%	5.8%
Illinois	349,982	446,453	481.993	516,679	27.6%	8.0%	7.2%
Indiana	182,066	227,070	237,619	251,523	24.7%	4.6%	5.9%
lowa	74,834	94,865	98,520	103,092	26.8%	3.9%	4.6%
Kansas	72,547	93,926	97,835	101,547	29.3%	4.2%	3.8%
Kennucky	162,902	197,167	202,806	208,868	21.0%	2.9%	3.0%
Louisiana Maine	259,750 39,682	300.045 49.245	317,394 50,529	333,570	15.5%	5.8%	5.1%
Maryland	137,383	178.170	186 960	53,094 203,222	29.7%	2.6% 4.9%	5.1% 8.7%
Massachusatte	107.18()	139,659	1 86,960 151,178	169,378	30.3%	8.2%	12.0%
Michigan	222,843	291,467	308,556	330,746	30.8%	5.9%	7.2%
Minnesota	95,772	122,226	125,594	131,470	27.6%	2.8%	4.7%
Mississippi	197,072	227,381	243,885	260,359	15.4%	7.3%	7.0%
Missouri	184,733	232,142	244,393	258,600	25.7%	5.3%	5.8%
Montane	33,061	40,124	40,760	41,943	21.4%	1.6%	2.9%
Nebrasica	49,590	63,049	65,244	67.543	27.1%	3.5%	3.5%
Nevada	36,571	49.379	54,497	62,514	35.0%	10.4%	14.7%
New Hampshire New Jersey	22,463) 212,216	29,3 87 277,038	31,8 58 271,824	34,400 304,558	30.8% 30.5%	8.4% -1.9%	8.0 % 12.0 %
New Mexico	84,795	105.367	112,334	118,089	24.3%	6.6%	5.1%
New York	556,373	710,531	745,760	800,752	27.7%	5.0%	7.4%
North Caroline	307,190	389,037	414,663	449,941	26.6%	6.6%	8.5%
North Delote	22,087	27,920	27,189	26.523	26.4%	-2.5%	-2.4%
Ohio	311,329	397,824	417,877	442,844	27.8%	5.0%	6.0%
Oklahoma	138,088	170,047	178,748	187,540	23.1%	5.1%	5.0%
Oregoa	91,307	115,402	117,817	124,271	26.4%	2.1%	5.5%
Pennsylvania	330,051	413,340	427,130	449,544	25.25	3.3%	5.2%
Rhode Island	24,436	30 .966 222.372	33,649	36,839	26.7%	8.7%	9.5% 8.7%
South Caroline South Dekote	176,074) 27,460	33,350	238,564 33,534	259,237 34,116	26.3%	7.3% 0.6%	1.7%
Tenneares	242.205	295,669	309,643	331,387	22.15	4.7%	7.0%
Texas	818,317	1.052.374	1,127,639	1,217,591	21.65	7.2%	8.0%
Utah	48,707	62,843	65,817	69,968	29.0%	4.75	
Vermont	15,925	19,853	20,463	21,798	24.75	3.1%	
Virginia	188.517.	240,019	253,093	275,937	27.3%	5.4%	
Washington	126,579	164,165	171,827	181,964	29.7%	4,7%	5.9%
West Virginia	72,723	88,501	90,383	92,549	21.7%	2.19	
Wisconsin	114,195	144,322	153,100	162,259	26.4%	6.1%	
W/yoming	15,897	19,658	19,865	20,796	23.7%	1.15	4.7%
U/.S. Total	1,719,469	11,148,994	11,918,403	12,856,425	26.8%	6.9¶	
Median	-				26.5%	4.79	6.3%

EIC Recipiency by State, Tax Years 1987-90

EIC Participation for Tax Year 1991

Below are preliminary IRS data on the number of families received Some 13.7 million families obtained benefits of \$11.3 billion for tax y

.

	Families Getting EIC	Amount
abema	343,721	\$307,842.000
	18,268	12.329.000
taona.	233.827	196,123.000
kaneae	1 8 5,306	159,107,000
lifornia	1.967,286	1,641,965.000
olorado	156,176	125.801.000
tudite the training the trainin	78,741	55,416.000
olawaro	32,999	28,960,000
strict of Columbia	47,963	38,567,000
orida	817, 836	694.023,000
eorgia	490,408	421,358,000
i i sveli	37.593	27,410,000
aho	5 6.3 17	46,160,000
nois	549,118	442.128,000
diana	267, 844	217,185.000
WE	108.787	85,111,000
	107,072	84,123.000
entucky	216,908	177,518,000
visiane	368,115	310,141,000
eine	55,574	42,140.000
eryland	:221.088	175,485,000
seechusette	168,086	125,353.000
lahigen	359,007	273,348.000
Inneepta	141,735	109,199,000
	281,754	253.593.000
leepuri	270,295	219,481,000
ontana	43,140	34,323,000
obranka.	70,908	56,837,000
wede	68.921	58,312,000
evidempehire	37,034	28,292.000
w Jersey	320,104	251,185.000
ew Mexico	122.505	100.759.000
ew York	813,247	644,112.000
orth Carolina	481,447	411,534,000
orth Dakota	28.530	21,200.000
his	467,780	386,860,000
kiehome	194,282	158,561,000
regen	131,427	104,834,000
enneyivania	467,320	380.064.000
hede leiend	34.519	26,954,000
outh Ceroline	281,904	245,540,000
ouin Daixota	35,736	28,844,000
	361,597	294,781,040
		1,122,890.000
	1,315,008	59,880.000
	73,690	17,646,000
	23,440	253,768,00()
Inginia	304,405	147,621,000
leshington	191,068	77,480,000
Vest Virginia	96.558	138.672.000
neconain	177,208	17,434,000
Vyening	21,930	•
J.S. Total	13,731,961	\$11,308,568,000
J.S. Total	1 3,731,981	\$11,308,5

Appendix F

Sample of Promotional Materials Used in the Current EIC Campaign

(Joint efforts of the Virginia Council of Higher Education, the Center of Budget and Policy Priorities, the Virginia Department of Taxation and the Internal Revenue Service.)





The IRS may have up to \$2,211 for you!

In 1992--

• Did you earn less than \$22,370 from a job and

• Have a child living with you for more than 6 months?

If so, you may qualify for the Earned Income Credit (EIC). This credit is subtracted from the amount of tax you owe. Even if you do not owe any tax, you might still get money back.

Get more information by calling the Internal Revenue Service at 1-800-829-3676 and asking for free **Publication** 596, *Earned Income Credit*.

Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service Notice 962 (Rev. 10-92) Catalog Number 13772B

GET YOUR EIC MONEY NOW!

If you qualify for the Earned Income Credit (EIC) you can choose to get the money in advance and receive part of the basic credit in each paycheck.

All you do is file Form W-5, "Earned Income Credit Advance Payment Certificate," with your employer. Remember, if you get the advance EIC in your pay, you must file a tax return at the end of the year to report the money you received.

If at any time during the year your circumstances change and you are no longer eligible for EIC, you will have to repay the amount advanced to you when you file your tax return. To stop the advance payments, you must fill out a new Form W-5 and give it to your employer.

For more information contact your payroll office or call the IRS at 1-800-829-3676 and order free **Publication** 596, *Earned Income Credit*, and Form W-5.

One-on-one tax help is available free at Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) and Tax Counseling for the Elderly (TCE) sites. To find a location near you call the IRS toll-free at **1-800-829-1040**.

The Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EIC) Could Mean Dollars In Your Pockets!!!

More than 13.7 million families received \$11.3 billion in Federal Earned Income Tax Credits (EIC) when they filed their 1991 federal income tax returns. More people may qualify for the EIC in 1992. If you worked and current less than \$22,370 for 1992 and had a child living at home, the federal government may owe rea as EIC of up to \$2,211. The credit is not included as income when determining eligibility or benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid, food stamps, SSI or federal housing assistance.

The amazing part about the **condit** is that you get a refund even if you don't owe income tax! That is why if you qualify, it is very important to file a return!

Low income families can benefit by filing for this credit because:

EIC Expansion Means More Money

Congress and the President significantly expanded the EIC. As a result, the **maximum credit for** the tax year 1992 is \$2,211. This credit includes three separate credits (1) the basic credit, (2) a credit for a child born in 1992, and (3) a credit for health insurance premiums for a policy which covers a child.

New Filing Procedure

Families that have received the EIC in the past may not know that they must file Schedule EIC with their federal income tax return. It is very important that families know that this year they need to file a tax return and attach Schedule EIC.

Many Unemployed May Be Eligible

Many families that didn't qualify for the EIC in the past may have been unemployed for part of 1992. As a result, their annual income for this year may have fallen below the EIC income limit. They should file Schedule EIC along with their return.

Want to know more?

In most areas, families can receive more information and free personal assistance at a nearby Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) site. For more information on the EIC or to find out the nearest VITA site in your area call the IRS toll free at

1-800-829-1040

The Federal Earned Income Tax Credit Could Mean Dollars In Your Pockets!!!

\$

If you worked and earned less than \$22,370 for 1992 and had a child living at home, the federal government may owe you a Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EIC) of up to \$2,211. The credit is not included as income when determining eligibility or benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid, food stamps, SSI or federal housing assistance.



DO YOU WANT TO KNOW MORE?

In most areas, families can receive more information and free personal assistance at a nearby Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) site. For information on the EIC or to find out the nearest VITA site in your area call the IRS toll free at

1-800-829-1040

Tax Credit In	10 for 1992 mment may C) of up to 1 determin- icaid, food	LE?	The Federal Earned Income Tax Credit Could Mean Dollars In Your Pockets!!!
The Federal Earned Income T Could Mean Dollars Your Pockets!!!	If you worked and earned less than \$22,370 for 1992 and had a child living at home, the federal government may owe you a Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EIC) of up to \$2,211. The credit is not included as income when determin- ing eligibility or benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid, food	DO YOU WANT TO KNOW MORE? Call 1-800-829-1040	If you worked and earned less than \$22,370 for 1992 and had a child living at home, the federal government may owe you a Federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EIC) of up to \$2,211. The credit is not included as income when determining eligibility or benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid, food stamps, SSI or federal housing assistance. SSI or federal housing assistance. DO YOU WANT TO KNOW MORE? For information on the EIC or to find out the nearest Volunteer Income Tax Assistance site in your area call 1-800-829-1040

The Federal Earned Income Tax Credit Could Mean Dollars In Your Pockets!!!

More than 13.7 million families received \$11.3 billion in Federal Earned Income Tax Credits (EIC) when they filed their 1991 federal income tax returns. More people may qualify for the EIC in 1992.

If you worked and earned less than \$22,370 for 1992 and had a child living at home, the federal government may owe you an EIC of up to \$2,211. The credit is not included as income when determining eligibility or benefit levels for AFDC, Medicaid, food stamps, SSI or federal housing assistance.

The amazing part about the credit is that you get a refund <u>even if</u> you don't owe income tax! That is why if you qualify, it is very important to file a return!

Low income families can benefit by filing for this credit because:

- EIC Expansion Means More Money Congress and the President significantly expanded the EIC. As a result, the maximum credit for the tax year 1992 is \$2,211. This credit includes three separate credits : (1) the basic credit, (2) a credit for a child born in 1992, and (3) a credit for health insurance premiums for a policy which covers a child.
- New Filing Procedure Families that have received the EIC in the past may not know that they must file Schedule EIC with their federal income tax return. It is very important that families know that this year they need to file a tax return and attach Schedule EIC.
- Many Unemployed May Be Eligible Many families that didn't qualify for the EIC in the past may have been <u>unemployed for part of 1992</u>. As a result, their annual income for this year may have fallen below the EIC income limit. They should file Schedule EIC along with their return.

Want to know more? In most areas, families can receive more information and free personal assistance at a nearby Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) site. Call the IRS toll free at 1-800-829-1040 for information on the EIC or to find out the nearest VITA site in your area.